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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees’ report, and a Directors’ report including a strategic report under company law.

The Community Inclusive Trust has continued to grow, primarily through the successful opening of Free
Schools. Bowman Academy in Leicestershire opened on 21 August 2024,

During the period 2023-2024 three further growth projects within Lincolnshire and Nottinghamshire were
pursued to the next stages.

As at 31 August 2024 the Trust comprised of the following schools and GAG funded pupils on roll:
Ambergate Sports College (172)"

Sandon School (73)*

Isaac Newton Primary School (383)

Tulip Academy {199}

Boston Endeavour Academy (98}

The Woodlands Academy (63)

Chapel St Leonards Primary School (127)
Caythorpe Primary School (85)

Greenfields Academy (77)

Poplar Farm Primary School (421)

St Paul’s Community Primary School (208)
Linchfield Primary School (302)

Foxfields Academy {95)

Bingham Primary School (127)

Bowman Academy (opened August 2024) (35)

L T T TR T

(* Ambergate Sports College and Sandon School formally merged on 1 January 2024 forming the Grantham
Additional Needs Fellowship).

The Community Inclusive Trust currently has 14 academies across the East Midlands (Lincolnshire,
Nottinghamshire, and Leicestershire) employing over 850 staff and educating and caring for over 2,300 pupils.

Community Inclusive Trust is a multi-academy chain that challenges and supports its academies to provide the
highest levels of education and care for their pupils.

The work of the Trust is underpinned by the following values:

Honesty and Integrity

Being truthful with each other, celebrating when things go well whilst being able to say when things are not as
good as they could be.

Showing good judgement and respect, consistently strong moral and ethical principles, and values.

Aspiration

Making sure that all have the best possible opportunities to achieve.

Professionalism

Acting in line with the expectations of conduct and behaviour in all situations and being a positive role model for
others.

Inclusivity
Promoting equality, celebrating diversity and treating everybody fairly.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trust was formed in 2014, founded by two outstanding schools, Grantham Additional Needs Fellowship
(GANF) ~ Ambergate Sports College and Sandon School. The Trust now consists of 7 primary schools, 7
special schools, and a LEARN SEND Hub,

The LEARN SEND Hub delivers comprehensive in-house CPD training to ali CIT schools and provides
extensive education services to education settings nationally.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution

Community Inclusive Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt Charity. The Trust's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are its primary governing documents. The Trustees of Community
Inclusive Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

The charitable company is known as Community Inclusive Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and administrative details on
page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

. Trustees' Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Company's expense to cover the liability of the
Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach them in respect of any negligence, default or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Company. Provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to:

i.  Any claim arising from any act or omission which Trustees knew to be a breach of trust of breach of duty of
which was committed by the Trustees in reckless disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of
duty or not, and

ii. The costs of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution bought against the Trustees in their
capacity as directors of the Company. Further, this Article does not authorise a Trustee to benefit from any
indeminity insurance that would be rendered void by the provision of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities
Act 2011 or any other provision of law.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

In accordance with the Articles of Association the Members may appoint up to 9 Trustees through such a
process as they may determine. The Trustees may appoint Co-opted Trustees through such a process as they
may determine. The total number of Trustees including the Chief Executive Officer who are employees of the
Company shall not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees. The term of office for any Trustee shall be
four years save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to
be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected. The Trustees have set up
procedures that enable regular reviews of the mix of skills and experience that should be available to the Board.

New Trustees with these skills are sought and recruited as replacements when existing Trustees stand down.

it is anticipated that most new Trustees will be drawn from the local community or other who have shown
interest in the future wellbeing of the Trust, the Academies within the Trust, and the pupils.

Recruitment takes place through a combination of approaches to individuals with known skills and by wider
communications to those within the East Midlands. Where potential new Trustees are identified, their related
skills and experience are evaluated. Recommendations are then forwarded to the Trust Board for consideration
and appointment through the voting process.

The term of office for any Trustee shall be four years save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief
Executive Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-
appointed or re-elected. The Trustees have set up procedures that enable regular reviews of the mix of skills
and experience that should be available to the Board.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The procedures for the Induction of Members and Trustees are detailed within the Trust Board (Members &
Trustees) Recruitment Flowchart.

Trustees are provided with Safeguarding training and annual Safeguarding refresher in accordance with
Community Inclusive Trust's Safeguarding Training Pian. Training sessions on relevant topics take place at the
end of every Committee and full Board meetings.

Additionafly, a comprehensive Trustee and Governor CPD in-house training programme which encompasses
statutory, recommended, and bespoke training packages was implemented in September 2024,

Further comprehensive Trustee and Governor CPD training can be accessed through the National College
Platform.

QOrganisational Structure

The Members have responsibility for holding Trustees to account in relation to the Community Inclusive Trust's
ethos and values and governance of the Trust. Members are the custodians of the governance of the Trust.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Their functions include taking part in Annual and Extraordinary general meetings, appointing / removing MAT
Trustees, appointing MAT auditors and receiving the annual accounts, amending the DfE approved Articles of
Association, changing the name of the charitable company the MAT operates under, winding up the MAT (if
ever required).

The Trustees have responsibility for setting and monitoring the overall strategic direction of the Trust and its
Academies, for holding the CEQ to account for the performance of the Trust and its academies and, for the
overview and assurance of the work of the Trust.

Subject to the Articles of Association, Trustees may regulate their proceedings as they see fit in order to
discharge their duties as Trustees. The Trust Board holds at least three meetings in every school year. The
Trust utilises electronic communications and virtual groups in order to maintain progressive working practice
and efficiency.

A Scheme of Delegation is in place, which devolves some powers and responsibilities to senior members of
staff as well as Local School Boards of each academy. The Scheme of Delegation is reviewed at least annually
by the Trust Board and amended as necessary.

Each Community Inclusive Trust academy has a Local School Board which operates within a Terms of
Reference document which defines the objectives and the scope of the responsibilities they undertake on behalf
of the Trust Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer and works closely with the other Trustees, the Local
School Boards, and senior members of staff to ensure the Trust achieves its objectives.

The day-to-day management of the Trust rests with the Chief Executive Officer who holds overall responsibility.
The CEQ is responsible for establishing an Executive Leadership Team, which includes certain senior members
of staff within the Trust. The Executive Leadership Team is responsible for ensuring the strategic direction is
maintained in addition to achieving operational effectiveness. In addition, an Educational Standards team has
been established which includes both Directors of Education, Deputy Director of Education, Academy Head
Teachers, Deputy Head Teachers, and Assistant Head Teachers. Through Community Inclusive Trust's
established School Heaith Check process, the Educational Standards team considers and evaluates the
performance of Community Inclusive Trust's schools and reports on the effectiveness of teaching and learning.
The team considers the aims and priorities for raising standards of achievement.

The Chief Executive Officer has delegated authority to appoint, discipline and dismiss with the exception of the
most senior members of staff for whom the full Board holds authority. Financial authority is delegated in line with
the Scheme of Delegation, and the Financial Management Policy. The Trust Board review the Scheme of
Delegation, and the Financial Management Policy at least every year to ensure they meet the provisions of the
Academies Trust Handbook, as well as support operational functionality. Financial and business decisions are
conducted in line with the Academy Trust Handbook 2024 and in accordance with the Trust policy and best
practice.

The Trust has a Central team to support all Community Inclusive Trust's schools in relation to business,
governance, and education standards.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

For all staff, their remuneration package is subject to the Community Inclusive Trust's Pay Policy. Currently, the
teachers’ statutory pay and conditions are used to benchmark teaching and senior teaching staff, with
exceptions being approved by the Trust Board. All staff undergo an annual performance appraisal. This is
linked to any performance related pay awards. For non-teaching staff, the Trust uses Lincolnshire salary
structure. For Executive pay ranges, including the CEO, Trustees commission third-party benchmarking
services to agree appropriate remuneration aligned to the sector. Key management personnel and Central staff
are remunerated within their given salary range.

The Trust Board is mindful of the charitable status of the Academy Trust and recognises the fact the Trust
receives funding under a funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education. Therefore, through
benchmarking, the Trust ensures that the remuneration paid to senior leaders never exceeds a reasonable
amount that provides value for money for the Trust.

An essential car allowance is in place for several members of staff for their particular role.
. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 1
Full-time equivalent employee number 1

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% 1

1%-50% -

51%-99% -

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total cost of facility time -

Total pay bill 25,690,428

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Community Inclusive Trust takes seriously its obligations to remain transparent at all times. All personnel are
required to disclose any personal and pecuniary relationships on an annual basis, as well as well as when an
event becomes notifiable.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Community Inclusive Trust values the views and opinions of all employees. Information is routinely shared
with staff via the Community Inclusive Trust's staff intranet and regular newsletters. Important communication
regarding matters of concern to employees are distributed directly via email or via the Head of each school and
delivered at staff meetings, morming briefings or debriefs.

A staff Wellbeing and Workload Survey is completed by all Trust staff twice a year. The purpose of these
surveys is to assess the overall wellbeing and provide an opportunity for employees to give feedback about the
Trust, how it is managed and the opinions of their work life balance. Employees who leave the Trust are also
encouraged to complete an exit interview. The information from these processes is collated and is used to
shape the future decision making of the Trust.

Community Inclusive Trust share their vision and ethos with all employees on the website, during training
sessions and inset days. Information about the Trust values is embedded as part of the performance
management process for all employees,

Community Inclusive Trust provides a fair and equal opportunity to work within the Trust and are fully committed
to providing a fair recruitment process for all potentiat candidates. Community Inclusive Trust is dedicated to
providing employment for disabled people. This means we do not unfairly discriminate against a candidate with
a disability, or an employee that becomes disabled whilst waorking for the Trust,

Community Inclusive Trust operates an Occupational Health Referral system which assesses the needs and
requirements of employees with a disability. This identifies and recommends any potential adjustments that can
be made to working environments or terms and conditions to support our staff.

. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy

The Community Inclusive Trust started its 2nd 3-year procurement strategy in 2023/24 and looks to widen the
department’s remit in finding new areas of focus, reviewing contracts coming to expiration while continuing to
assist in meeting the requirements of its own policies and the changing legislation set by the UK Government.
The Trust continues to benefit and achieves increased value for money through reduction of workload for staff,
standardisation of terms and conditions, standardisation of pricing, fixed pricing for multiple years, increased
quality of goods and services throughout the Trust, reduction in the number of contracts with different renewal
dales, rebates and discounts available for large value spend and MAT's not available for single schools,
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

The biggest change in legislation is due to come into effect at the end of October 2024 with the implementation
of The Procurement Act 2023. There is a greater focus on transparency and the need to publish notices to
market prior to, during and on completion of any tenders by the Trust. This change should have a minimal
impact on the Trust's procurement activities for 2024/25 as we envisage only 1 or 2 projects reaching the
minimum threshold levels of: £5,372,609 for capital works, £884,720 for utilities covered under Light Touch,
£663,540 for other Light Touch Contracts (i.e. catering) and £214,804 for all other public tenders (all figures are
inclusive of VAT). The scheme of delegation has been amended ready for the start of the 2024/25 Academic
year in order to simplify the process and reflect the changes in pricing and spend due to the growing size of the
Trust, inflation and other external factors. Trust policies continue to be monitored and updated to reflect the
latest UK Government Legislation and Trusi requirements pertaining to public sector procurement.

One of the largest areas of spend outside of payroll is facilities management and the Trust has started to
address this by beginning the processes of creating its own SEMs style frameworks covering all schools with
the work continuing throughout 2024/25. As at the end of 2023/24 1 project has been completed and 4 others
have been started.

Contract Management became a big focus for 2023/24 with school and central contract information being
loaded on to the compliance software to give greater visibility of what is contracted where, to reduce overlap and
assist with the future planning for the procurement team. During the 1st half of 2024/25 copies of all outstanding
contracts will be (scanned where required and) uploaded onto the system followed by a review of all areas to
identify new areas of focus for centralisation and to promote best value for money.

Conclusions

The Trust's procurement strategy has and will continue to achieve savings in 4 main ways; Negotiated, Ongoing
Business Relationships, Trust Discounts and Hidden Cost Savings. An overview of activity and savings over the
past 12 months are detailed below. Total Value of Initial Quotes = £557,812.10. Total Contractual Spend =
£450,902.75. Direct negotiated discounts with suppliers = £70,789.6, Discounts offered to schools due to them
being part of a MAT = £21,148.50. Business relationships and other savings £137,272.85. Hidden cost savings
of approximately £19,052.50. These are savings realised through; not requiring the renegotiation of contracts
annually saving working hours, reduction in the duplication of work ete. reduction in time required completing
induvial pricing exercises (through frameworks), realised efficiencies in processes. Indirect savings in other
areas as a result of the project.

Together these help ongoing savings through economies of scale, increases quality of goods and service
provided, reduces time taken to resolve issues, mitigates duplication of work requirement to negotiate a trust
wide contract as opposed to numerous single school contractss.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and aims

The Trust's principal object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and
developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum,

The Trust's Mission is to ensure that all pupils within its schools receive the best education and care, and that
the Trust works in partnership to support and improve the education system.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

To meet the Trust's Mission, a set of strategic objectives has been developed and approved by the Trust Board
and is set out in the Strategic Plan for 2023-2026. The Strategic Plan aims to ensure that CIT will support staff
to give every pupil what they need to thrive and be ready for the next stage of their lives,

The Plan’s three main strategic priorities are to achieve:

1. Fully resourced high-quality education, care and safeguarding.

2. Best value for money through economies of scale.

3. Sustainability through carbon reduction initiatives and sustainable actions.

The foundations for the delivery of our Strategic Plan are as follows:

Safeguarding
CIT will ensure:

* There is robust, systemic, and pro-active management of safeguarding.

» There is effective, accurate reporting and accountability across the whole Trust,

* All staff and volunteers are trained appropriately to undertake the role expected of them,

» There is clarity of roles, responsibility, and lines of management to enable efficient processing of
information so that nothing gets missed.

Education

CIT will achieve:

» Educational resilience through deeper collaboration and a culture of improvement to ensure that all pupils
have access to a broad and balanced curriculum that prepares them for the next steps in their life.

+ Curriculums with reading at their heart as it is the gateway to learning.

» Strong outcomes for all disadvantaged pupils.

¢ Curriculums that develop pupils’ cultural capital.

People
CIT will achieve:

e Governance and leadership at all levels setting and supporting the Values and culture of CIT,

« Workforce resilience as an employer that ensures CIT effectively recruits and retains staff with the skills and
abilities to meet the needs of our schools and pupils.

* Being recognised as a good employer where staff feel supported, valued, included and are given
opportunities to develop.

Finance

CIT will achieve financial resilience to ensure it can:

 Withstand the monetary and political stresses placed upon it through working to ensure the Trust's financial
development is sustainable.

+  Build income and expenditure reserves to facilitate delivering outstanding lifelong learning for all pupils.

e Achieve the best value for money across the Trust,
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Operations
CIT will achieve:

« Operational resilience through all employees, departments and schools working together in deep and
purposeful collaboration as a single legal entity,

« A Growth Strategy that adds value to current members of CIT, as well as incoming organisations.

« An Estates Vision which is underpinned by a relentless focus on improving outcomes for current and future
pupils, staff and communities we serve,

o An IT Strategy that promotes technology to be at the forefront of academic excellence across the Trust
through effective planning and resourcing.

¢ A Communications Strategy that:
°  Demonstrates CIT as a professional organisation with the capacity to deliver its Mission.
¢ Ensures highly effective internal communications across the Trust.

Objectives, strategies and activities

To meet the Trust's Mission, a new set of strategic objectives has been developed and approved by the Trust
Board and is set out in the Strategic Plan for 2023-2026. The Strategic Plan aims to ensure that CIT will
support staff to give every pupil what they need to thrive and be ready for the next stage of their lives. The
Plan's three main strategic priorities are:

1. To provide fully resourced high-quality education, care and safeguarding.
2. To achieve best value for money through economies of scale.
3. To promote sustainability through carbon reduction initiatives and sustainable actions.

Due to the Trust approving the new Strategic Plan during the mid-point of the year 2022-23 {(as referenced
above), the previous objectives are listed below for information:

Leadership: To foster and enhance a Governance and Leadership structure that drives "Lifelong Learning”.

Standards: To ensure the Community Inclusive Trust has the capacity to be self-supporting, with the educational
expertise which can lead and challenge its own schools to deliver outstanding education and ensure exemplar
safeguarding practice.

Engagement: To ensure the Community Inclusive Trust has a reputation for being an efficiently operating
organisation that provides outstanding provision and a Trust Dividend for its schools and staff, which is not only
respected and trusted by the community the Community Inclusive Trust serves but aflows Community Inclusive
Trust to drive and influence policy locally and nationally.

Support Hub: To progress towards an annual tumover of at least £30 million, which generates economies of
scale that allow the Central Support Hub to be financially efficient, support growth and provide high quality
services that are valued and trusted by the community and schools they serve.

Enterprise: To expand Community Inclusive Trust's operation across the East Midlands with a mixture of
inclusive mainstream and special schools and for LEARN to further develop its resource and direct it intermally
and externally to drive “lifelong learning for all” and enhance Community Inclusive Trust's reputation.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limlted by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Public benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

The Trustees have taken The Charity Commission’s specific guidance on public benefit (contained within the
guidance document ‘The Advancement of Education for the Public Benefit") into consideration in preparing their
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compiiance contained within this Annual Report,

In accordance with its charitable objectives, the Charitable Company strives to advance the education of the
students attending the Academies within the Trust. The Charitable Company's primary beneficiaries are
therefore the pupils, and benefits to pupils are provided through continuing to maintain a high standard of
education throughout the Academies within the Trust.

In order to determine whether or not the charitable company has fulfilled its charitable objectives for public
benefit, the Trustees gather evidence of the success of each Academy within the Community inclusive Trust
activities.

Page 12



COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee})

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT
Achievements and performance

Monitoring Support and Challenge

In 2023/24 Community Inclusive Trust has maintained its track record for School Improvement.

School School Type Ofsted Grade

GANF Special Qutstanding

Bingham Primary - Mainstream  No designation - Free School
Caythorpe Primary - Mainstream Requires Improvement
Chapel St Leonards Primary - Mainstream  Good

Foxfields Special Good

Tulip Special Outstanding

Greenfields Special Good

Isaac Newton Primary - Mainstream Requires Improvement
Boston Endeavour Special Good

Linchfieid Primary - Mainstrearmn Good

Poplar Farm Primary - Mainstream  Good

St Paul's Primary - Mainstream Good

Woodlands Special Good

Bowman Academy Special No designation - Free School

Key Performance Indicators

Due to the diversity of the Academies and pupils within the Community Inclusive Trust, the following KPI's are
measured through a variety of activities and data. This includes the Trust's annual Heaith Check of all its
Academies which reviews quality of teaching, leaming and assessment, personal development behaviour and
welfare, outcomes for pupils and effectiveness of leadership and management, Ofsted reports, exam data,
NEET Schools, internal school progress measures, performance management, lesson observations and
leaming walks. There is also a separate Safeguarding Health Check:

e Pupils to achieve targets and to ensure all measures are rapidly increasing to, or, above the national
averages.

o Students to be provided with a curriculum to maximise their progress towards qualification success, further
study, and employability.

o Ensure that the curriculum offer has clear hierarchical objectives, maintains breadth and increase rates of
progress.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Statutory Results

Results for 2024 within the mainstream primary schools were as follows:

KS2 SATs results {in percentages)
Schaol Reading EXS Writing Maths BS Combined XS
Bingham a0 80 %0 80
Caythorpe 91 B2 46 46
Chapel St Leonards 72 67 67 53
Isaac Newton 77 70 82 62
Linehfigld 74 86 74 61
St Paul's 52 62 45 41
COIT Average 72 75 70 57
Nadonal 74 72 73 61
Phonics
School Phonics
Bingham 73
Caythorpe 23
Chapel St Leonards 93
Isaac Newton 75
Lingnfald 83
Poplar Farm 73
STPS 77

Specialist schools;

There were a significant number of qualifications achieved by pupils during this academic year. | would
especially like to highlight the fact that GANF achieved record results this year with 21 grades at 4 or above.
Functional skills qualifications remain really strong across all schools. The breath of qualifications achieved also

highlights the broad curriculums we have within our special schools.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

GANF GCSE {Previously Ambergate and Sandon)

Qualification | Subject Grades 9 B 7 | 6B Stey |4ICH]| 3D | 2iE) | L
English

GCEE Lenguaze | Number of: 1 1 3

GCSE Maths Number of: 4 2 1 T 2

BGCSE Statistics | Number of: 3 1

Qualificavion | Subject | Grades 5-5|5-4(4-4|4-3|3-3|3-2|2-2({2-1/11
Combined

GCSE Science Number of: 1 1 2 2 [ 1 1

_Greenfields GCSE

Qualification | Subjact | Grade a9 B | 7 |66l |5Sice | () |3i0) | AEY| 1 u
English Number

GCSE Language | of. 1 3

Number

GCSE Maths of: 1 4 4

Qualification | Subjact Groge 55 | 54| 44| 43 33 | 32| 22| 21 11
Science
doubte MNumber

GCSE award of: 2 2 1 3

Woodlands GCSE

Oualification | Subject | Grade 9 [ 7 | aie} | stes | ] | 3000 | 2B u

GCSE Maths Number of: ? 7 4

GCSE English Number of: 1 1 1 3

GCSE Geog Number of; 1 1

GLSE Art Number of: 1 1 bl

GCSE History Number of: 3
Computer

GCSE Science MNumber of: 1

Qualification | Subject Grade s5|54|44| 43 | 33|32 |22|21]|11| U
Science
double

GCSE award Number of: 1 1 1 1
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Functional Skills/ Entry levels! vocational:

GANF- Other Qualifications {Previously Ambergate and Sandon)

Qualification | Subject | Grade Entrylevell | Entrylevel2 | Entrylevel3 Level 1

Functonal English | Mumber of 7 1 8 1
Skills
Functionat Maths Number of 9 9 13 &
Skdtls

Woodlands - Other Qualifications

Qualification Subject Grade Levet 2 level Lcert | Level 1l Awaed
NCFE Engineering | Mumber of; 3
NCFE Photography | Number of: 3
Food and
NCFE cookery skills | Number of: 3
NCFE Creative ¢raft | Number of; 2
Art and
NCFE Design Number of; 1
Qualification Subject Grade Entrylevel 3 | Entry Level 2 Entry Lavel 1
Functional Skills Math i 7 5
Functional Skilis English [ 5
ENTRY LEVEL Science 2 2
Unit
Qualification Subject Grade Accreditation
Duke of Edinburgh | * Number of: &
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(A company Hmited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Greenfields- Other Qualifications

Entry Entry | Entry
Quakfication | Subject Grade Lewvel 1 Level 2 | Level3 Levell tevel 2
ENTRY LEVEL | Maths MNumber of: 3 3
ENTRY LEVEL | English Number of; 1 -]
ENTRY LEVEL | Scienge MNumber of; 3 3
ENTRY LEVEL | History Number of: 1
Entry
Qualification | Subject Gmade LevelZ |tevedl | level
Occupational
NCFE studies Number of. [
Food and
MNCFE cookery skills | Number of: 2
NCFE Enterprise Numnber of:
ASDAN Animal care Number of;
Uniform
public
NCFE Servioes Number of 1
RCFE Sport Number of; 1
Qualification | Subject Grade Certificate
Duke of
Edinburgh Number of
Foxflelds - Other Qualifications
Qualificstion | Subject | Grade Entrylevell | Entry Level 2 | Entry Level 3 | tevel1 | Level2
Funcdonat Number
Skills Maths | of 2
Functional Number
SldNs English | of 2

BEA - Other Qualifications

Emry Level Entry Level
Subject Grade Entry Level Aword | Certificate Diploma Levell | Level2
Number
ASDAN of. 1 5
TULIP- Other Qualifications

Entry Enuy Entry
Quakfication | Subject Grade Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Level1 Lewel 2
Functional
Skills Maths Number of: 5 16 8 1
Funcdonal
Skills English Number of: 6 15 5
Functigrial
Skills Science Number of 2 13 7
Funcdonal
Skills Computing | Number of: 7 15 3

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

. Promoting the Success of the Academy Trust

The Companies Act 2006 requires that directors of a company must act in a way most likely to promote the
success of the company, and in doing so must have regard to:

« the likely consequences of any decision in the long term

» the interests of the company’s employees

+ the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers, and others
+ the impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment

« the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct.

Trustees have fulfilled these duties through various actions, including the appointment of the CEQ, establishing
a clear Scheme of Delegation, holding the Executive Team members to account for their actions and decisions
through Trust Board and committee mestings, visiting schools to engage with staff and pupils and experience
the school environment, engaging with the Trust's Local School Boards, engaging with stakeholders at the
Department for Education through formal meetings and review and challenge of the strategic plan and other
strategic and operationat improvement pians.

The interests of the Trust's employees have been protected through application of the Teachers' Pay and
Conditions for all teaching staff, recognition of and regular engagement with relevant Trade Unions and the
implementation of a range of employee-related policies including Whistleblowing and Grievance Policies, and
the launch of a Trust-wide Well-being Strategy.

The impact of the Trust on its communities is, in the first instance, evident through the provision of education
services to pupils within the communities served by the Trust's schools.

Financial review

The Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2024 of £88,745,998, comprising £116,438 of restricted funds, a
fixed asset reserve of £87,110,680 and £1,518,880 of unrestricted general funds.

Most of the Trust's income is obtained from the ESFA and Local Authority in the form of recurrent grants, the
use of which is restricted to particular purposes, as well as other income sources. During the year ended 31
August 2024, the total income was in excess of total expenditure by £10,406,813. This included £1,299,000 of
transactions relating to the restatement of the LGPS balance. These excluded, the excess of expenditure over
income was £9,107,813.

The main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the Balance Sheet date. In particular,
the management of spending against General Annual Grant (GAG) requires special attention as the amount of
carry forward is monitored. In the period under review, £116,438 was carried forward.

Trust's non-teaching staff are entitied to membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Trust's
share of the Scheme's assets is currently assessed to be more than its liabilities in the Scheme which is not
recognised in these financial statements.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Reserves policy

The Trustees Policy is to generate reserves to provide funds to continue to enhance the educational facilities
and services of the Trust and to fund future projects. The Trustees will ensure that the levels of reserves that
can be carried forward at the end of the financial year will be in line with the guidance received from the DIE on
the treatment of GAG income and other grants. Community Inclusive Trust will try to match income with
expenditure in the current year and will only carry forward reserves that it considers are necessary for future
year's expenditure having regard for.

1. Forecasts of levels of income in future years

2. Forecasts for expenditure in future years

3. Analysis of any future development needs and opportunities that could not be met out of annual income
4, Analysis and forecasts of cash flow and fund management

The Trust intends to build up a prudent level of reserves over a period of time and will review the reserves level
annually. The target level of reserves is a minimum of 3% of the gross incoms of the schools within the Trust as
per the Trust's Reserves Policy, with an aim to increase this to 5% over the next 3 years. This policy is reviewed
annually, to ensure it does not unnecessarily limit the amount spent on educational activities, whilst ensuring the
Trust’s solvency and its future activities are not at risk.

The Trust's reserves comprise both unrestricted and restricted funds. As at 31 August 2024, the funds held in
Unrestricted Revenue Reserves were £1,518,880 and Restricted Revenue Reserves totalled £116,438. The
Unrestricted Revenue Reserves is 4.3% of gross income which is within the target level of the policy. At the time
of the approval of the accounts, no additional funding is being provided by the government for future pay
increases and therefore reserves will be held in order to assist in the funding of these in the following academic
year. A further £87,110,680 is held in the Restricted Fixed Asset Reserves, however, this can only be realised
by disposing of the Trust's Fixed Assets.

The Trust maintains a 5-year financial plan, which considers various funding scenarios and how these can be
managed and planned for. The Trust's risk management palicy requires the Trustees to assess the major risks
to which the Trust will bs exposed and consider how the risks can be managed and mitigated

Investment policy

The Trustees investment powers are set down in the charitable Companies Memorandum and Articles of
Association, which permit the investment of monies of the charitable company that are not immediately required
for its purposes in such investments, securities, or property as may be thought fit subject to any restrictions
which may from time to time be imposed or required by law.

The Academy Trust can invest surplus funds where the return is higher than that of a normal current deposit
account. Apart from funds transferring to a current deposit account, all investment decisions are decided by the
Finance, Audit & Estates Committee and Trustees in line with its Treasury Management Policy. Any investment
made by the Trust will ensure there is no risk of loss in capital value of any cash funds invested and that
invested funds are protected against inflation and a view is taken to optimise returns on invested funds.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees are responsible for identifying risks faced by the Trust, assessing the likelihood of each risk
occurring and its potential impact, and taking appropriate steps to mitigate the risks to a level they consider to
be acceptable.

The Board of Trustees has assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, cenfring around meeting its
vision for outstanding lifelong leaming for all, whilst balancing the need to set and maintain the Trust's financial
reserves, in the face of continuing pressure on school funding in real terms.

The Trustees continue to assess risks that the Trust faces, especially in the operational areas (e.g., in relation
to teaching quality, Health and Safety, school trips, safeguarding, recruitment and retention of staff, IT and data
security) and in relation to the control of finance, and implementation of operational and financial controls in
order to minimise risk. Where significant financial exposure risk still remains, they have ensured the Trust has
adequate insurance cover (RPA).

The Audit and Risk committes, a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees was formed in September 2023,
The Terms of Reference (TOR) were agreed and approved by the Board. Details can be found in the
Governance section of this report.

Additionally, systems and procedures have been established to manage those risks and a risk register is
maintained and reviewed regularly. The Risk Register maintains a focus on risks that may impact negatively on
pupil outcomes, teaching, governance, operations, legal, property, finance, commercial, people, technology,
information, and safeguarding.

The Audit and Risk Committee dealt with the possible risks associated with the in-year prompt departure of a
key management person. Meetings were held and mitigations were put in place; a member of staff was
appointed on an interim basis to ensure the smooth running of the department.

Internal control systems and exposure to risks are considered in relation to all activities and legislation and
discussed during weekly leadership and termly Trustee's meetings. Risk management is embedded into the
day-to-day processes of Trust and its individual schools.

To mitigate estates related risks, the Trust is progressing its strategic Estates Plan which details of the
compliance, condition, refurbishment and suitability or expansion work that needs to be carried out to provide
the optimum learning environment for pupils. Having a complete picture of the physical condition of the estate
has informed the Trust's understanding of the current state of the building fabric. This, when combined with
guidance from the DfE's Good Estates Management (GEMSs), has informed the selection and prioritisation of
capital condition improvement projects across the Trust.

As the Trust grows additional risks may be identified. The Trustees will evaluate these risks and ensure that
adequate measures are put in place to mitigate and reduce these risks.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Fundraising

CIT Academies approach to fundraising is two-fold:

1.  Written grant applications to potential funders
These applications are written and managed by the Support Hub Fundraising Team on behalf of individual
schoois. School projects are assessed by need and impact on pupils.
This funding stream is seen by CIT as essential to provide pupils across the Trust with extended
enrichment, to compliment the national curriculum, and to offer pupils a broad and balanced education.

2. Online school donation campaigns
These campaigns are managed by the Support Hub Fundraising Team on behalf of individual schools.

Protection of the public

CIT Academies occasionally run individual school donation campaigns (online and/or via text giving) for specific
projects. These campaigns are non-intrusive and leave the onus up to the individual as to whether they would
like to donate and support or not. No pressure is involved in donation campaigns, they are simply posted out on
individual school social media pages.

Fundraising Complaints
To date, the Trust has not received any form of complaint regarding its fundraising approaches since its fruition
in September 2014. This is monitored by the Head of Communications & Fundraising for the Trust.

Fundraising Revenue 2023/2024

During the academic year 2023-2024, 117 grant applications were submitted, 38 of which were successful, 48
unsuccessful, with 31 decisions still outstanding. In total, the Fundraising Team successfully secured £60,460.
This funding was used to implement the following projects::

Duke of Edinburgh Awards.
Library Books.

Breakfast Clubs.

Transport for school trips.
Playground equipment.
Playground markings.
Sports equipment.
Gardening and Horticulture.
3D Printer.

EYFS Qutdoor Learning.
Staff German Exchange planning trip.

« & & 8 & & B & » @ =
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Academy's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2024 2023
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions {kWh) 3,628,213 3,967,721
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):
Gas 2,407,178 2,572,954
Electricity 1,178,383 1,353,699
Transport fuel 11,282 88,147
Qil 31,370 33,053
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 439.45 469.72
Qil consumption 8.46 8.92
Total scope 1 447.31 478.64
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes C0O2e
Purchased electricity 244.05 299.06
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 19.41 19.41
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 711.37 797.11
Intensity ratio:
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.31 0.33

Quantification and Reporting Methodology-

Community Inclusive Trust has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmentai Reporting Guidelines. The
Trust has also used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK
Government’s Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity Measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures Taken to Improve Energy Efficiency

This marks the fifth year the Trust has been required to report on both its energy consumplion and its plans to
improve its energy efficiencies. Trust-wide energy consumption and efficiency saving has now bscome an
annual pillar within the overarching Estates strategy. Measures taken to improve energy efficiency over the
course of the year have included:

. School continues with LED usage on all schools, Staff bike to work scheme, staff electric car scheme
. Electricity monitoring units reviewed and continue to be used to identify waste in all schools.
. Trust-wide electricity reduction campaign launched.

Photovoltaic Solar Panels {PV) installed on majority of schools in the Trust.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

The Trust has three key action statements for the forthcoming academic year;

e We are looking to refine and improve the Trust's approach to Salix Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme
applications and bids, with an aim to facilitate the replacement of heat sources on schools identifying the
correct most efficient and effective solutions for each site.

e Continue to look at enhancing our understanding of usage and waste across the trusts Estate

» Review and look at possibility of further Electric Vehicle charging points on schools

Plans for future periods

The Community Inclusive Trust continues to achieve its strategic objectives and deliver excellent support to
academies within the organisation; a mechanism enabled by pooling resources, providing value for money, and
delivering economies of scale.

The Trust is further supported by its maintenance of LEARN SEND Hub, which provides training and
development to educators and support staff across schools in the East Midlands.

Community Inclusive Trust is committed to the training, development, and wellbeing of staff across all its
schools. Through its investment in people, by training and personal development, the service provided to the
pupils is enhanced as well as developing the necessary infrastructure to support underperforming schools.

Given its strength, The Trust has been approached by two primary schools that have both successfully been
awarded academy orders by the Regional Directors office. Both schools will look to join the Trust in 2024-2025.
The Trust continues to analyse and be open to opportunities to grow its number of schools whilst maintaining
geographical integrity and a commitment to adding value. Leadership capacity is strong in the fields of
Education, Finance, HR, Operations, Estates Management and Governance.

The Trust continues to work to raise the aspirations and outcomes of pupils at all ages, closing gaps between
the performances of different groups where this is needed and ensuring all pupils can proceed successfully to
the next stages of their development and progression to adult life.

The Trust continues to invest in its assets, supported by grant funded allocations from the Department of
Education’s School Condition Allocations and other funding where available. Key projects will continue to be
delivered across all primary and special phases.

The Trust has developed its methodology and approach to growth, as detailed in both the strategic plan and
Risk Management Policy. Growth is carefully planned and measured against a set criterion for the Board of
Trustees to consider prior to their agreement for the acquisition or merger of new schools. The Trust's Growth
Matrix is periodically reviewed by Trustees in conjunction with the Executive.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The charitable company maintains restricted funds to deal with incoming resources that are earmarked for a
particular purpose by donors, sponsors, and other funders,
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Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unawars, and
° that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on
o l i 2L and signed on its behalf by:

......................

Chair of T ee
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Community Inclusive Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
competency framework for govenance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Cormmunity Inclusive Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to
the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intemal control.

Governance

The infonmation on govemance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ report and in the
statement of trustees' responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Stephen Hopkins, Chair of Trustees 5 5
Kate Goodman 3 8
Kim-Adele Platts 3 5
Helen Drew-Bradley 5 5
Bryan Steele 4 4
Julia Lindley-Baker 2 5
Jo Slesser 4 5
Keith Stanton 3 3
Pamela Powell 4 5
Harpaul Dhindsa 1 5
Nathan Jeremiah 4 4
Leah Miller 2 3
Lisa Ashcroft 0 1
Paul Tallentire 1 1

The composition of the Board has evolved during the year. This has been driven by the skills audit that identified
a greater need for finance and business expertise as well as primary experience to support and challenge the
growth of the Primary sector within Community Inclusive Trust.

Recent additions to the Board include four Trustees with a wealth of experience in Education, Business,
Finance, Estates and Operations.

Data is presented to the Board of Trustees and all Board Committees by the Executive Leadership Team ina
clear and structured manner which enables Trustee scrutiny, debate, challenge, and deliberation.

Robust Governance and effective oversight of the Trust’s funds has been maintained by supplementing the full
Trust Board meetings with three Finance, Audit and Estates Committee mestings as well as the monthly
scrutiny and approval of all Management Accounts by the Chair of the Finance, Audit and Estates Committee.
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Governance (continued)

Monthly Management Accounts are also made available to the full Board of Trustees at each Board meeting
and via the Trust’s online portal.

Additionally, fortnightly meetings are held by The Chair of the Trust Board and the CEO.

Declarations of Conflicts and Pecuniary Interests are submitted annually by Members, Trustees, Local School
Board members and staff in Senior and Financial roles. A complete and up-to-date register is published on the
Trust's website.

At every full Trust Board and Committee meetings participants are required to declare whether they may have a
pecuniary interest on any item scheduled within the agenda. Where they have, a decision is taken, at the
meeting, as to whether it is appropriate for that individual to contribute to discussion and potential decision
making on that particular itern.

A Govermmance Development Plan was produced following recommendations from the External Review of
Governance undertaken in 2022-23; its implementation took place in academic year 2023-24.

A seif-review was carried out by Trustees, in the period 2023-24, against the seven principles of the Charity
Governance Code.

Using the code’s framework, and analysing their work as Trustees, the position of the Board was established.
As an outcome of this self-review, further work was undertaken in relation to EDI, the establishing of a
Nominations Committee and the improvement of communications with stakeholders.

The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees that meets at least three times
ayear.

Its purpose: is to:

¢ To maintain an oversight of the Trust's financial and non-financial, govemance, risk management, intemal
scrutiny, and control systems.
Undertake the ‘overview, accountability and assurance’ responsibilities linked to all Audit related matters.
Undertake the review of the Risk Management Policy and the Risk Appetite Statement.
Undertake the key Trust Board responsibilities detailed in the DfE Academy Trusts Handbook including
Financial Risk (see SOD / Schedule 1).

e Determine the potential risks facing the Trust; related Finance and Estates matters are determined and
assessed in relation to the Board's risk appetite.
Risk control measures are in place and are impactful in reducing levels of perceived risk.
Ensure Health and Safety related risks are effectively managed across the Trust.
To report its findings termly and annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer (AQ) as a critical
element of the Trust's annual reporting requirements.

* The Audit and Risk Committee has no executive powers or operational
responsibilities/duties.
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Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended QOut of a possible
Stephen Hopkins 4 4
Helen Drew-Bradley 4 4
Harpaul Dhindsa 1 4

The Finance and Estates Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees that meets at least three
times a year.

Its purpose is to:

» Undertake the ‘overview, accountability and assurance' responsibilities linked to all Finance matters, Audit
related matters, matters linked to the Trust's Estate, matters linked to GDPR, and matters linked to data
security.

e Undertake the key Trust Board responsibilities detailed in the DfE Academy Trusts Handbook inciuding

Financial Risk (see Schedule 1)

Approve decisions as detailed in the Trust Scheme of Delegation

Advise on any strategic priorities for the Trust linked to financial matters and Estates matters

Ensure that the Trust behaves with regularity and propriety

Ensure that the Trust secures values for money though economic, efficient, and effective use of the

resources in its charge.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Stephen Hopkins 3 4
Nathan Jeremiah 3 4
Bryan Steele 3 3
Pamela Powell 3 4
Helen Drew-Bradley 3 3

Page 27



COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

Continued investment in CPD for staff to increase the quality of education received by pupils

Regular meetings of all primary and special school Headteachers to share strategies and good practice

Undertaking competitive tendering processes in line with Community Inclusive Trust's policy

Review of staffing structures within Community Inclusive Trust

Review of department expenditures

Actively looking to central purchasing for utilities and other services for the whole Trust in order to

accommodate economies of scale,

e Ultilising capital and sustainability grant funding to improve building fabric and the introduce energy saving
initiatives to reduce expenditure on utilities.

* Investment in a new Management Information System (MIS) used across all schools to enhance data

collection, analysis and benchmarking.

The Community Inclusive Trust started its 2nd 3-year Procurement Strategy in 2023/24 and looks to widen the
department’s remit in finding new areas of focus, reviewing contracts coming to expiration while continuing to
assist in meeting the requirements of its own policies and the changing legislation set by the UK Government.
The Trust continues to benefit and achieves increased value for money through reduction of workload for staff,
standardisation of terms and conditions, standardisation of pricing, fixed pricing for multiple years, increased
quality of goods and services throughout the Trust, reduction in the number of contracts with different renewal
dates, rebates and discounts available for large value spend and MAT's not available for single schools.

One of the largest areas of spend outside of payroll is facilities management and the Trust has started to
address this by beginning the processes of creating its own SEMs style frameworks covering all schools with
the work continuing throughout 2024/25. As at the end of 2023/24 1 project has been completed 4 others have
been started.

The Trust's Procurement Strategy has and will continue to achieve savings in 4 main ways; Negotiated,
Ongoing Business Relationships, Trust Discounts and Hidden Cost Savings.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of interal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the academy trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively, and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Community Inclusive Trust for
the period ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date
of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

Dedicated leadership time is given to the risk management process. Staff are trained and equipped to manage
risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties. As with any large organisation not all risks can be
mitigated and therefore setbacks or near-misses do occur.

Community Inclusive Trust makes every effort to engender a culture of openness that allows learning to be
gathered from these situations to be collated and enacted to significantly reduce the possibility of them
reoccurring.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's syster of internal financial controls is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

) regular reviews by the Board of Trustees of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has appointed Schools Choice as internal auditor.

The internal auditors have a three-year appointment, their first full year being the year ended 31 August 2024,
These are independent of the external auditors in line with the Academies Trust Handbook which requires
separate audit teams,
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The risk and control framework {continued)

The internal audit team's role is to provide assurance on a range of the Trust's financial operating, governance
and other areas related to the Trust's Risk Register'. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period
included:

. Risk Management

Purchase procedure compliance
. Cyber Security
. Payroll procedures

The internal audit team reported the findings to the Audit and Risk Committee who in turn briefed the Board on
recommendations and findings.

The internal audit team delivered the schedule of work in line with expectations of previous years, Where areas
for improvement were highlighted, the Trust together with the heads of department and school operations
managers agreed an action plan to strengthen best practice and eradicate any concerns raisad.

Key points raised during the reviews were areas relating to cyber security training and transactional
documentation. However, no material anomalies were identified, and general practice indicated schools were
operating in line with the Trust's policies. However, training was and is being delivered to ensure schools
operate in line with the Trust's guidelines.

The Board of Trustees appointed Schools Choice to provide internal audit services. This option was chosen
because of their ability to provide scrutiny for the purpose of auditing a variety of compliance matters to
academies and Multi-Academy Trusts.

On a three-year basis, outcomes from audit are reported to the Board of Trustees through the Audit and Risk
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities. On an annual basis the auditor prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations, and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year-on-year progress.

The Risk and Audit Committee maintains a balanced approach when agreeing the focus of audit activity in any
given year, ensuring scrutiny of a wide area of Trust operational and strategic activity, aligned to the Trust’s Risk
Register.
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Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

L]

the work of the internal auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the school resource management seff-assessment tool;

the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

the work of the extemal auditors;

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
contro! by the Audit & Risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement

of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the
opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and
control.

..................

— Peter Bell
Accounting Officer
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

In January 2024 CIT's Trust Board signed off and launched its next three-year strategic plan. Within the 2023-
26 plan it sets out a clear vision that CIT will support staff to give every pupil what they need to thrive and be
ready for the next stage of their lives.

When CiT achieves this vision, the Trust will provide:

. Fully resourced high-quality education, care and safeguarding.
. Best value for money through economies of scale.
. Sustainability including carbon reduction initiatives to help the environment and reduce costs.

In continuing difficult financial times, | am delighted as the Accounting Officer and Chief Executive of
Community Inclusive Trust that these accounts show that we have registered a small surplus, as well as
confinuing to improve the quality of education and care across our schools. This success has been external
verified through the Trust's external examination results continuing to improve, as well as two schools within the
Trust moving from Special Measures to Good. | would like a special mention in terms of St Paul's who were
graded Good by Ofsted in July 2024 with Qutstanding for Leadership. St Paul's joined the Trust over three
years ago, having received a Special Measures judgment. The school has never in its history been graded
anything better than Satisfactory or Requires Improvement. | want to thank the local community, staff, pupils
and the Central Team for all the hard work in achieving this cultural shift,

In line with its Strategic Plan, CIT has also installed £500,000 worth of solar panels across its schools, as well
as initiated other carbon reduction initiatives such as an electric car scheme, cycle to work and installation of
LED-iighting.

During 2023/24 the Trust has continued to grow in terms of pupil numbers in both its Primary and Special
schools. CIT opened Bowman Academy in partnership with the DfE and Leicestershire County Council in
August 2024. The new school will cater for 65 SEMH (Social, Emotional and Mental Health) pupils when
running at capacity. The Trust has continued to deliver a number of capital builds in partnership with Local
Authorities and the DfE; these include the complete rebuild of the Waterside Campus at Tulip Academy, as well
as a £4 million extension at Foxfields Academy.

Through LEARN, its school improvement arm, CIT continues to support schools across the East Midlands, as
well as a provide a comprehensive internal offer to CIT schools. The work undertaken has received positive
feedback, as well as having a significant impact in terms of outcomes for pupils and development of staff skills.

The Chief Executive Officer presents his statement for the year.
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Community Inclusive Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust Board and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration, | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
Trustees and ESFA.

Peter Bell
Accounting Officer

Date: |D/l i/l\‘\
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024;

E make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; ,

° prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business,

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Iodn/lass

Dr Stephe!
Chair of Tru
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Community Inclusive Trust (the ‘academy') for the year ended 31
August 2024 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

o have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issus.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the course
of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
° the Trustees' report has been prepared in accardance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have rot been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such interal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was that we identified the material laws and
regulations applicable to the trust through discussions with Trustees and other management, and from our
commercial knowledge and experience of the Trust and education sector in which it operates. We then
assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence.

We then assessed the susceptibility of the trust's financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by making enguiries of management as 1o where they
considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and
considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we tested journal enfries to
identify unusual transactions, we reviewed a sample of grants in the year to allocation and accurate recognition,
we agreed a sample of employees on the Trust payroll to existence and agreed the accuracy of their pay, we
assessed and reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the key systems and controls. We also
assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in Note
2 were indicative of potential bias and investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

in response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation, reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing intemal audit
reports for any indication of breaches of laws and regulations, enguiring of management as to actual and
potential litigation and claims and reviewing any correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the Trust's
legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above, The more removed those laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.

Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry of the trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if
any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they
may involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
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Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

— O

—

Mark Bradshaw (senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Streets Audit LLP

Windsor House

A1 Business Park at

Long Bennington

Nottingham

NG23 5JR

Date: |~ Miore

Page 38



COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 25 March 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Community Inclusive Trust during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Community Inclusive Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Community Inclusive Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Community Inclusive Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Community Inclusive Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Community Inclusive Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 August 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Pariiament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant o the regularity and propriety of
the Academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* areview of the Trust's systems and controls and confirmation of their operation and effectiveness during the
year;

* a review of expenditure to confirm the appropriateness and value for money and that appropriate
tendering/quotation procedures had been followed in line with the Trust's finance policy; and

» areview of related party relationships and internal audit reports.

In line with the Framework and guide for external auditors and reporting accountants of academy frusts issued
Aprit 2023, we have not performed any additional procedures regarding the Trust's compliance with
safeguarding, health and safety and estates management.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

—

Mark Bradshaw (Senior statutory auditor)
Streets Audit LLP

Windsor House

A1 Business Park at
Long Bennington
Nottingham

NG23 5JR

Date: \'\\ WQie L
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Income from:
Donations and capital

grants:

Transfer from Local

Authority

Other donations and

capital grants
Investments

Charitable activities

Other income

Total income

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities
Other expenditure

Total expenditure

Net income/

(expenditure)
Transfers between

funds

Net movement in
funds before other

recognised

gains/({losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit
pension schemes
De-recognition of
defined benefit
pension scheme

surplus

Net movement in

funds

Note

8

19

27

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
- - 9,221,000 9,221,000 5 628,000
- - 1,794,677 1,794,677 5,560,057
34,312 59,000 - 93,312 17,735
700,660 31,958,832 - 32,659,492 28,107,616
585,215 - - 585,215 580,075
1,320,187 32,017,832 11,015,677 44,353,696 39,893,483
662,781 30,613,884 2,160,644 33,437,309 29,940,227
509,574 - - 509,574 608,690
1,172,355 30,613,884 2,160,644 33,946,883 30,548,917
147,832 1,403,948 8,855,033 10,406,813 8,344,566

- (74,520) 74,520 - -
147,832 1,329,428 8,929,553 10,406,813 9,344,566
- 496,000 - 496,000 2,403,000

- (1,530,000} - (1,530,000) -
147,832 295,428 8,929,553 9,372,813 11,747,566
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Note

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in
funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
1,371,048 {178,990) 78,181,127 79,373,185 67,625,619
147,832 295,428 8,929,553 9,372,813 11,747,566
1,518,880 116,438 87,110,680 88,745,998 79,373,185

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year,

The notes on pages 46 to 78 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

than one year

Net assets excluding pension asset/

liability

Defined beneiit pension scheme asset /

liability

Total net assets

2024
Note £
15 86,880,762
86,880,762
16 1,743,476
3,516,185
5,259,661
17 (3,267,773)
1,991,888
88,872,650
18 (126,652)
88,745,998
27 -

88,745,998

2,305,180
4,630,654

6,935,834

(3,708,887)

2023

76,561,022

76,561,022

3,226,947

79,787,969

{149,784)

79,638,185

(265,000)

79,373,185
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023

Note £ £
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 19 87,110,680 78,181,127
Restricted income funds 19 116,438 86,010
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 19 87,227,118 78,267,137
Pension reserve 19 - {2686,000)
Total restricted funds 19 87,227,118 78,002,137
Unrestricted income funds 19 1,518,880 1,371,048
Total funds 88,745,998 79,373,185

The financial statements on pages 41 to 78 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are
signed on their behalf, by:

The notes on pages 46 to 78 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ysar

The notes on pages 46 to 78 form part of these financial statements

2024 2023

Note £ £
21 {90,181) (2,875,805)
23 {1,002,153) 2,007,809
22 (22,435) (27,170}
(1,114,469) (895,166)
4,630,654 5,525,820

24,25 3,516,185

4,630,654
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies

11

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
{Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 20086.

Community Inclusive Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of 3
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy’s ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitement to the funds, the receipt
is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

The Academy is benefiting from the ESFA's Free School Building Programme. The funding for the
programme is not recognised as a capital grant until there is unconditional entitement from costs
being incurred, and the development occurring on a site where the Academy controls through lease
the site where a development is occurring. The expenditure is capitalised in assets under
construction until the project is complete.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Academy on conversion to an academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy. An equal amount of income is recognised
as a transfer on conversion within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets
received.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

1.6

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to & third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned betwsen those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged dirsctly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricied fund.

Where properties occupied by academies are the subject of PFI contracts, consideration is given to
the detailed terms of the relevant contract and to whether or not the PFI contract transfers the risks
and rewards of ownership to the trust. If there is such as transfer of risk and rewards, such assets
are accounted for under the policies of land and buildings set out above. If such risks and rewards
are not transferred, the nature of the properties is desmed to be akin to serviced accommodation,
and payments under the PF| contract are treated as operating lease payments.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates caiculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.6

1.7

18

1.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold property - 2% straight line

Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 20% straight line
Motoer vehicles - 25% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.

Liabhilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide,

1.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to seitle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies {(continued)

1.11 FInancial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other deblors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Academy’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.12 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{("TPS") and the Local Gevernment Pension Scheme ("LGP8"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilites. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset Is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by muitiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.14 Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
financial activities as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised
in the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are
disclosed in note 32.

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

tnvestment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee})

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

Woodlands Academy and Greenfields Academy are PFI schools and the property occupied is therefore
the subject of PFI contracts. The trustees have given consideration to the detailed terms of the relevant
contract and to whether or not the PFI contracts transfers the risks and rewards of ownership to the trust.
The trustees have concluded that the PFl contracts does indeed transfer the risks and rewards of
ownership to the trust and accordingly the property is accounted for under the policies of tangible fixed
assets above.

The trustees also give consideration to whether properties held under 125 year leases from the Local
Authority transfer the risks and rewards of ownership to the trust. The trustees have concluded that the
125 year leases do indeed transfer the risks and rewards of ownership to the trust and accordingly the
properties are accounted for under the policies for tangible fixed assets above.

At 31 August 2024, the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date was valued at
less than the fair value of plan assets and thersfore the plan has a surplus. In accordance with FRS 102,
an entity shall recognise a plan surplus as a defined benefit plan asset only to the extent that it is able to
recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan.
Trustees have concluded that there is no realistic expectation that the surpius will be realised or will
provide future economic benefit to the trust. As a result the pension asset has not been recognised in the
balance sheet of the
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
Transfer from Local Authority 9,221,000 9,221,000 5,628,000
Capital grants 1,794,677 1,794,677 5,560,057
11,015,677 11,015,877 11,188,057
Funding for the Academy's educational operations
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Academy’s Educational Operations
General Annual Grant {GAG) - 16,377,397 16,377,397 15,191,157
Cther DIE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium - 1,390,207 1,390,207 1,666,599
UIFSM - 202,140 202,140 156,265
Supplementary grant - - - 466,520
Other DIE Group grants - 2,043,566 2,043,566 627,217
- 20,013,310 20,013,310 18,107,752
Other Government grants
Local Authority funding - SEN - 8,742,030 8,742,030 7,297,675
Local Authority funding - SEN out of county - 958,107 958,107 589,077
Local Authority funding - LAC - 103,823 103,923 115,527
Local Authority funding - other - 1,636,653 1,636,653 1,321,588
- 11,440,713 11,440,713 8,323,867
Other income from the academy’s
educational operations 700,660 504,809 1,205,469 675,997
700,660 31,958,832 32,659,492 28707676
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Funding for the Academy's educational operations {continued)

Total 2023

Investment income

Bank interest
Pension income

Total 2023

Other incoming resources

LEARN income

700,660 31,958,832 32,659,492 28107616
649,850 27,457,766 28,107,616
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
34,312 - 34,312 17,735
s 59,000 59,000 -
34,312 59,000 93,312 17,735
17,735 - 17,735
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
585,215

585,215 580,075
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Expenditure

Academy’s Educational
Operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs
Other expenditure

Total 2023

Other expenditure

LEARN expenditure

LEARN wages and salaries

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

£ £ £ £ £

22,296,561 - 1,592,243 23,888,804 271,005,609

3,508,001 2,174,325 3,925,179 9,607,505 8,934,618

354,394 - 155,180 509,574 608,690

26,158,956 2,174,325 5,672,602 34,005,883 30,646,904
23,891,169 1,858,147 4,897,588 30,646,904

Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2024 2024 2023

£ £ £

155,180 155,180 97,421

354,394 354,394 511,269

509,574 608,680

509,574
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

10.

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
Academy's Educational Operations 23,888,804 9,607,505 33,496,309 29,940,227
Total 2023 21,005,609 8,934,618 29,940,227
Analysis of support costs
Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£ £
Staff costs 3,427,195 3,741,177
Depreciation 1,732,401 1,646,722
Technology costs 350,190 324,435
Premises costs 1,414,251 1,026,940
PFl costs 727,641 651,950
Other costs 1,920,802 1,502,053
Governance costs 35,025 41,341
9,607,505 8,934,618
Net income
Net income for the year includes:
2024 2023
E £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,732,401 1,646,722
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - (404,395)
Fees paid to auditors for:
- audit 19,000 18,000
- other services 5,250 5,250
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

11,

Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments
Severance payments

b. Severance payments

The Academy paid 5 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000
£25,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £100,000

¢. Special staff severance payments

Included in staff costs are non-statutory severance payments of £71,925.

2024 2023

£ £
19,815,378 17,615,510
1,914,014 1,713,099
3,790,155 4,221,281
25,519,547 23,549,890
468,528 273,344
170,881 67,935
26,158,956 23,891,169
2024 2023
£ £

45,489 26,491
125,392 41,444
170,881 67,935
2024
No.

3
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COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
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1.

Staff (continued)
d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers 233 224
Management 25 25
Administration and Support 747 724
1,005 973

e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension coslts) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2024
No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 9
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 6
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 3
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 2
In the band £120,001 - £130,000 B
In the band £130,001 - £140,000 1
In the band £170,001 - £180,000 1

2023
No.

7

4
3
2

pury

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for

their services to the Academy was £1,065,142 (2023 £994,464).
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12. Central services

The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Financial services including internal and external audit;
Education support services;

Strategic leadership;

IT support services and licensing;

HR and recruitment services;

Governance support services;

Health and Safety and Estates related support services;
Centralised contracts;

School Operations Management services.

The Academy charges for these services on the following basis:

A combined calculation model using a number of varying factors to determine the overall charge, so that
different size and different types of schools are protected on paying too much or too litle. This was
consulted upon with all senior leaders across the Trust and will be reviewed annually to ensure that it is
still fit for purpose.
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12

13.

14,

Central services (continued)

Ambergate Sports College and The Grantham Sandon School have combined to become Grantham
Additional Needs Fellowship.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
Ambergate Sports College - 244,082
The Grantham Sandon School - 197,605
The Isaac Newton Primary School 198,259 197,558
Boston Endeavour Academy 232,554 237,264
Woodlands Academy 188,977 190,001
Caythorpe Primary School 45,730 48,043
Chapel St Leonards Primary School 98,678 102,750
Greenfields Academy 198,029 197,622
Poplar Farm Primary School 180,057 148,824
St Paul's Community Primary School 136,310 123,688
Foxfields Academy 298,416 174,715
Linchifield Community Primary School 185,952 190,742
Tulip Academy 372,352 373,682
Bingham Primary School 94,887 84,943
Grantham Additional Needs Fetiowship 422,291 -
Total 2,652,492 2,511,419

Trustees' remuneration and expenses
During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2023 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2024, travel expenses totalling £799 were reimbursed or paid directly to
5 Trustees (2023 - £1,587 to 3 Trustees).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Academy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement {(RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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15.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2023
Additions

Acquired on conversion

At 31 August 2024
Depreciation

At 1 September 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net book value

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

F/hold and Furniture
L/hold and Computer Motor

property equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £
81,183,218 911,738 998,427 386,974 83,480,357
2,402,168 186,276 242,697 - 2,831,141
9,221,000 - - - 9,221,000
92,806,386 1,098,014 1,241,124 386,974 95,532,498
5,360,844 558,384 740,123 259,984 6,919,335
1,342,042 140,918 193,182 56,259 1,732,401
6,702,886 699,302 933,305 316,243 8,651,736
86,103,500 398,712 307,819 70,731 86,880,762
75,822,374 353,354 258,304 126,990 76,561,022
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15.

16.

Tangible fixed assets {continued)

The Trust's transactions relating to freehold and leasehold property are:

On 21 August 2024 the new school Bowman Academy was opened. On the same date the site was

received on a 125 year lease by way of a donation from the local authority.

Further transactions include:

School expansion at Foxfields - £1,678,670

Hydro pool works at GANF - £77,765

Classroom and washroom works at Caythorpe and Linchfield - £160,579
Car park extention at St Paul's - £297,273

Other small projects across the trust - £186,390

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

2024 2023

£ £

289,271 670,555
67,941 604,860
1,386,264 1,029,765
1,743,476 2,305,180
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17.

18.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2024 2023

£ £

Other loans 22,485 21,488
Trade creditors 275,235 1,099,327
Other taxation and social security 430,313 401,980
Other creditors 684,208 526,915
Accruals and deferred income 1,855,532 1,659,177

3,267,773 3,708,887

2024 2023

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2023 925,812 872,578
Resources deferred during the year 908,333 925,812
Amounts released from previous periods {925,812) {872,578)

908,333 925,812

Deferred income includes Universal Infant Free School Meals, rates relief and other grant income for the
2023/24 academic year.

Other loans relate to loans from Lincolnshire County Council from converting schools, and from the ESFA
agreed as part of the Condition Improvement Fund bids. Each loan is repayable over 9-10 years with
varying interest rates applying between interest free and 1.95%.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2024 2023
£ £
Other loans 126,652 149,784

Other loans ralate to loans from Lincolnshire County Council from converting schools, and from the ESFA
agreed as part of the Condition Improvement Fund bids. Each loan is repayable over 8-10 years with
varying interest rates applying between interest free and 1.95%.

Page 63



COMMUNITY INCLUSIVE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

19.

Statement of funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,371,048 1,320,187 (1,172,355} - - 1,518,880
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 86,010 16,377,397 (16,272,449) (74,520) - 116,438
DIE/ESFA
grants - 4,244,645  (4,244,645) - - -
LA grants and
other income - 11,336,790 (11,336,790) - - -
Pension
reserve {265,000) 59,000 1,240,000 - {1,034,000) -
(178,990} 32,017,832 (30,613,884) (74,520) (1,034,000) 116,438
Restricted
fixed asset
funds
Transfer on
conversion 63,964,729 9,221,000 (1,038,214) - - 72,147,515
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 637,405 - {15,407) 74,520 - 696,518
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 7,599,005 1,794,677 {549,364) - - 8,844,318
Other activities 5,979,988 - {557,659) - - 5,422,329
78,181,127 11,015,677  (2,160,644) 74,520 - 87,110,680
Total
Restricted
funds 78,002,137 43,033,509 (32,774,528) - {1,024,000) 87,227,118
Total funds 79,373,185 44,353,696 (33,946,883) - (1,034,000) 88,745,998

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds represent both those resources, as well as funds transferred to the Academy from the
Local Authority upon canversion, which may be used towards meeting any of the abjects of the Academy
at the discretion of the Trustees. These are not currently designated for particular purposes.

Restricted Fixed Asset funds

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion represents the assets transferred to the Academy from the
Local Authority upon conversion.

Capital expenditure from GAG represents fixed asset expenditure transferred from other restricted
incoms.

Restricted Revenue funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) is made up of a number of different funding streams, all of which are used
to cover the running costs of the Academy.

Other ESFA Grants, other government grants and other restricted funds represent monies received for
specific purposes.

Pension Reserve represents the current deficit balance of the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS).

Transfers between funds represent the use of recurrent income being used to fund capital expenditure.

Summary

The balance on restricted general funds plus unrestricted general funds at 31 August 2024 results in a
net surplus of £1,635,318.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2024.
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
T September Transfers Gainsy 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,343,486 1,247,660  (1,220,098) - - 1,371,048
Restricted
funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 129,071 15,191,161 (15,158,604) {75,608) - 86,010
DfE/ESFA
grants - 2,164,832  (2,164,932) - - -
LA grants and
other income - 10,101,683 (10,101,683) - - -
Pension
reserve (2,542,000} - {126,000) - 2,403,000 {265,000}
(2,412,929) 27,457,766 (27,551,219) (75,608} 2,403,000 {178,990)
Restricted FA
funds
Transfer on
conversion 59,263,138 5,628,000 (926,409) - - 63,964,729
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 675,436 - (13,639) 75,608 - 637,405
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 7,084,012 1,212,869 (697,876) - - 7,599,005
Other activities 1,772,476 4,347,188 {139,676) - - 5,979,988
68,695,062 11,188,057 (1,777,600} 75,608 - 78,181,127
Total
Restricted
funds 66,282,133 38645823 (29,328,819) - 2,403,000 78002,137
Total funds {30,548,917) - 2,403,000

67,625,619

39,893,483

79,373,185
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19.

Statement of funds {continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

Central trust

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total

2024 2023

£ £
1,635,318 1,457,058
87,110,680 781871,127
- {265,000

88,745,998

79,373,185

Community Inclusive Trust manages the reserves of the schools centrally in order to ensure sufficient
liquidity is available to meet the needs of all academies within it. Therefore, these reserves have been

disclosed at charitable trust level.
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation
£ E £ £
Ambergate
Sports College - - - -
The Grantham
Sandon School - - - -
The Isaac
Newton Primary
School 1,834,756 184,348 73419 529,884
Boston
Endeavour
Academy 2,484,938 144,591 83,952 408,353
Waoodlands
Academy 1,629,005 107,306 102,532 714,785
Caythorpe
Primary School 478,694 72,671 31,176 132,674
Chapel &t
Leonards
Primary School 802,687 133,325 46,592 240,109
Poplar Farm
Primary School 1,525,370 228,841 66,792 436,209
Greenfields
Academy 1,656,506 108,814 95,944 646,654
St Paul's
Community
Primary School
and Nursery 1,165,058 167,941 46,156 347,276
Foxfields
Academy 2,049,675 134,806 141,895 572,142
Linchfield
Community
Primary School 1,391,582 160,193 43,704 417,333
Tulip Academy 3,118,923 315,150 119,473 666,559
Bingham
Primary School 609,469 77,258 29,336 233,716

Total
2024

2,732,407

3,121,834
2,553,628

715,115

1,222,713
2,257,212

2,507,918

1,726,431
2,898,518
2,012,812
4,220,105

949,779

Total
2023

2,744,523

1,893,642

2,592,376

2,604,300
2,207,898

706,324

1,243,647
1,742,432

2,458,376

1,421,165
1,916,290
1,926,774
3,940,275

769,810
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Grantham
Additional Needs
Fellowship 3,650,795 459,421 131,188 753,160 4,994,564 -
Central services 473,200 2,129,733 153,435  (2,454,822) 301,446 735,363
Academy 22,970,558 4,434 398 1,165,594 3,643,932 32,214,482 28,902,195
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20.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 86,880,762 86,880,762
Current assets 1,518,880 3,030,917 709,864 5,259,661
Creditors due within one year - (2.914,479) (353,294) (3,267,773)
Creditors due in more than one year - - (126,652) (126,652)
Total 1,518,880 116,438 87,110,680 88,745,998
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 76,561,022 76,561,022
Current assets 1,371,048 3,464,737 2,100,049 6,935,834
Creditors due within one year - (3,378,727) (330,160) (3,708,887)
Creditors due in more than one year - - (149,784) (149,784}
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {265,000) - {2685,000)
Total 1,371,048 (178,990}

78,181,127

79,373,185
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21,

22,

23,

Reconciliation of netincome to net cash flow from operating activities

2024 2023
£ £
Net income for the period {as per statement of financial activities) 10,406,813 9,344,566
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,732,411 1,646,722
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income {1,794,676) (6,107,569)
Interest receivable {34,312) {17,735)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (1,246,000} 46,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost {59,000} 62,000
Decreasel(increase) in debtors 561,704 (1,440,343}
Decrease in creditors {442,111) (395,051)
(Profit)/loss on the sale of fixed assets - (404,395)
Defined benefit pension scheme administration cost 6,000 18,000
Donation of assets from local authority {9,221,000) (5,628,000
Net cash used in operating activities {90,181} (2.875,805)
Cash flows from financing activities
2024 2023
£ £
Repayments of borrowing (22,135) (27,170)
Net cash used In financing activities (22,135) (27,170)
Cash flows from investing activities
2024 2023
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 34,312 17,735
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,831,141) (4.665,007)
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets - 547,512
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 1,794,676 6,107,569
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities 2,007,809

{1,002,153)
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24,

25.

26.

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
£ £
Cash in hand and at bank 3,516,185 4,630,654
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,516,185 4,630,654
Analysis of changes in net debt
At1
September At 31
2023 Cash flows August 2024
£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 4,630,654 (1,114,469} 3,516,185
Debt due within 1 year {21,488) (997) {22,485)
Debt due after 1 year (149,784) 23,132 (126,652)

4,459,382  (1,092,334) 3,367,048

Capital commitments

2024 2023
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets

- 63,292
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27.

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Lincolnshire County Council. Both are mult-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £552,165 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £455,194)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the opfion to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap}) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carvied out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educafion on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI
The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

e employer confribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is nseded.

o total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028,
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27.

Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,321 458 (2023 - £1,906,156).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https:!!www.teacherspensions.co.ukfnewsr‘employerszO191'04/teachers-pensions-valuation—report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out
above, the information available on the scheme,

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £3,469,000
(2023 - £2,711,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £2,890,000 (2023 - £2, 185,000) and
employees’ contributions totalled £ 579,000 (2023 - £526,000). The agreed contribution rates for future
years are various per cent for employers and various per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffimed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on gov.uk,

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.80 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.80 2.85
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.10 5.30

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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27.

Pension commitments {continued})

Retiring today
Males

Females

Reliring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase

2024 2023
Years Years
19.5 19.5
22,7 22.6
20.7 20.8
2414 24.0
2024 2023
£000 £000
521 435
619 535

The pension scheme surplus/deficit is based on the actuarial assumptions used as at the 31 August
2023. These can, and do, change after the year end. The above sensitivity analysis shows how the
position stated can change significantly based on changes to the actuarial assumptions. A change in the
markets is likely to result in an increased pension scheme deficit by next year end. Post year end
valuations could be obtained to provide an indication, howsver, it is considered that the cost would
outweigh the benefit to the users of the accounts, and would not be value for money.

Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Corporate bonds

Property
Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,296,000 (2023 - £509,000).

At 31 At 37 August

August 2024 2023
£ £

14,024,000 12,403,000
3,555,000 2,641,000
1,816,000 1,492,000
6,187,000 3,652,000
25,582,000 20,088,000
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27.

Pension commitments {continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
Current service cost (1,644,000) (2,231,000)
Interest income 1,148,000 791,000
Interest cost {1,089,000) {853,000}
Administrative expenses (6,000) {18,600)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities {1,591,000) (2,311,000
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 20,353,000 19,897,000
Current service cost 1,644,000 2,231,000
Interest cost 1,089,000 853,000
Employee contributions 579,000 526,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 690,000 (2,974,000
Benefits paid {303,000) {180,000)
At 31 August 24,052,000 20,353,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 20,088,000 17,355,000
Interest income 1,148,000 791,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) 1,186,000 {571,000)
Empioyer contributions 2,890,000 2,185,000
Employee contributions 579,000 526,000
Benefits paid (303,000) {180,000)
Administration expense {6,000) {18,000)
At 31 August 25,582,000 20,088,000
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28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Not later than 1 year 611,980 542,071
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,265,978 2,161,686
Later than 5 years 1,503,132 2,035,697

4,381,090 4,739,654

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11.

Post balance sheet events

On 1 September 2024 Bowman Academy, a free school, joined the Trust. On 1 November 2024,
Billingborough Primary School converted to academy status and joined the trust.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £3,930 (2023 - £10,686) and disbursed £6,255 (2023 -

£8,621) from the fund.
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33.

Free School Building Programme

On 21 August 2024 Bowman Academy opened as part of the trust under the ESFA's Free School
Building Programme for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The asset of the
property transferred was valued as its fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
Financial Activities as Donations.
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